
TOWN COUNCIL MEETING AGENDA, TUESDAY, APRIL 1, 2014 
   Page 1 of 4  

 
 
 

 
Town Council Agenda 
04/01/2014 
 

 
Town of Loxahatchee Groves 

Town Council Meeting 
Tuesday, April 1, 2014 at 7:00 p.m. 

Loxahatchee Groves Water Control District, 101 West “D” Road 
 

   
Mayor David Browning (Seat 4)             Town Manager Mark Kutney 
Vice Mayor Ronald D. Jarriel (Seat 1)            Town Clerk Janet K. Whipple 
Councilman Tom Goltzené (Seat 5)             Town Attorney Michael D. Cirullo, Jr. 
Councilman Ryan Liang (Seat 3) 
Councilman Jim Rockett (Seat 2) 
 
 
 

PUBLIC NOTICE/AGENDA 
 
1. OPENING 
 

a. Call to Order & Roll Call 
 
b. Pledge of Allegiance & Invocation – Mayor Browning 
 
c. Approval of Agenda 
 
d. Appointment of Mayor 
  
e. Appointment of Vice-Mayor 

 
 
 
 

Tentative  
Subject to Revision 
 

1 of 143  04/01/2014  Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



TOWN COUNCIL MEETING AGENDA, TUESDAY, APRIL 1, 2014 
   Page 2 of 4  

 
 
 

 
Town Council Agenda 
04/01/2014 
 

2. CONSENT AGENDA   
 
a. Invoice from Goren, Cherof, Doody & Ezrol, P.A. 
 
b. Minutes for Approval:  March 4, 2014 

 
c. Consideration of First Amendment of the Interoperable Radio Communications 

Agreements with Palm Beach County. 
 

  
3.  PUBLIC COMMENTS 
 
 
4.  PRESENTATIONS  

 
a. Ms. Shelly Townsend, Equine Eco Green, to provide a presentation on a recycling process for 

equine waste. 
 
 
5.  COMMITTEE REPORTS  

 
a. Approval of the FAAC (Financial Advisory and Audit Committee) February 2014 

Financial Report. 
 

b. Report by RETGAC (Roadway, Equestrian Trails, and Greenway Advisory Committee. 
 

 
6.  RESOLUTIONS - None 

 
 
7.  ORDINANCES  
 
ORDINANCE NO. 2014-03: 1ST READING/PUBLIC HEARING (Livestock Waste 
Haulers)  AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF 
LOXAHATCHEE GROVES, FLORIDA, RELATING TO HAULING OF LIVESTOCK 
WASTE WITHIN THE TOWN;  PROVIDING FOR DEFINITIONS; PROVIDING FOR 
PERMITS AND PERMIT FEES; PROVIDING FOR THE DISPOSAL OF LIVESTOCK 
WASTE ONLY AT APPROVED DISPOSAL SITES WITHIN THE TOWN; PROVIDING 
FOR PERMITTED HOURS OF HAULING LIVESTOCK WASTE WITHIN THE 

2 of 143  04/01/2014  Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



TOWN COUNCIL MEETING AGENDA, TUESDAY, APRIL 1, 2014 
   Page 3 of 4  

 
 
 

 
Town Council Agenda 
04/01/2014 
 

TOWN;  PROVIDING FOR REQUIRED RECORDS AND AUDITING OF SUCH 
RECORDS BY THE TOWN; PROVIDING FOR CHANGES TO LIVESTOCK WASTE 
REGULATIONS; PROVIDING FOR REVOCATION OF PERMITS AND 
ENFORCEMENT; PROVIDING FOR CONFLICTS; PROVIDING FOR 
SEVERABILITY; PROVIDING FOR CODIFICATION; AND PROVIDING FOR AN 
EFFECTIVE DATE. (Ordinance No. 2014-03 is back for a 2nd 1st reading due to revisions of the 
wording within the document) 

  
 8.  ADMINISTRATIVE UPDATE – Town Manager Kutney 

 
a. Gas Tax Map 

 
b. IGC 

  
  
9.  OLD BUSINESS 

 
a. Procurement of Construction Services for Compton Road, Bryan Road, and Marcella 

Boulevard roadways 
 

1) Update on Plans by Keshavarz & Associates 
 

2) Discussion of Piggybacking and Plan of Action 
 

b. Speed Humps 
 

  
10. NEW BUSINESS 

 
a. Miscellaneous Budget Issues 

 
b. Discussion on content, and direction for Town Attorney to prepare a Town Management 

RFP (Request for Proposal). (Requested by Councilman Rockett) 
 

 
11.  CLOSING COMMENTS 
 

a. Public 
b. Town Attorney   

3 of 143  04/01/2014  Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



TOWN COUNCIL MEETING AGENDA, TUESDAY, APRIL 1, 2014 
   Page 4 of 4  

 
 
 

 
Town Council Agenda 
04/01/2014 
 

c. Town Council Members 
 

 
12.  ADJOURNMENT 
 
 
 
 
 
 
The next regular Town Council Meeting is tentatively scheduled for April 15, 2014. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Comment Cards: Anyone from the public wishing to address the Town Council must complete a Comment Card before speaking. This must 
be filled out completely with your full name and address and given to the Town Clerk. During the meeting, before public comments, you may 
only address the item on the agenda in which is being discussed at the time of your comment. During public comments, you may address any 
item you desire. Please remember that there is a three (3) minute time limit on all public comment. Any person who decides to appeal any 
decision of the Council with respect to any matter considered at this meeting will need a record of the proceedings and for such purpose, may 
need to ensure that a verbatim record of the proceedings is made which included testimony and evidence upon which the appeal is to be based. 
Persons with disabilities requiring accommodations in order to participate should contact the Town Clerk’s Office (561-793-2418), at least 48 
hours in advance to request such accommodation. 

4 of 143  04/01/2014  Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

 

 

 

 Item 2.a. 

Consent Agenda 

Attorney Cirullo Invoice 

 

 
 

5 of 143  04/01/2014  Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



6 of 143  04/01/2014  Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



7 of 143  04/01/2014  Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



8 of 143  04/01/2014  Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



9 of 143  04/01/2014  Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



10 of 143  04/01/2014  Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



11 of 143  04/01/2014  Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



12 of 143  04/01/2014  Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



13 of 143  04/01/2014  Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

 

 

 

 Item 2.b. 

Consent Agenda 

Minutes  

March 4, 2014 

 

 
 

14 of 143  04/01/2014  Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



TOWN COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES, TUESDAY, MARCH 4, 2014 
   Page 1 of 10  

 
 

 
Town Council Minutes 
03/04/2014 
  

 
Town of Loxahatchee Groves 

Town Council Meeting 
Tuesday, March 4, 2014 at 7:00 p.m. 

Loxahatchee Groves Water Control District, 101 West “D” Road 
 

   
Mayor David Browning (Seat 4)             Town Manager Mark Kutney 
Vice Mayor Ronald D. Jarriel (Seat 1)            Town Clerk Janet K. Whipple 
Councilman Tom Goltzené (Seat 5)             Town Attorney Michael D. Cirullo, Jr. 
Councilman Ryan Liang (Seat 3) 
Councilman Jim Rockett (Seat 2) 

 
MINUTES 

1. OPENING 
 

a. Call to Order & Roll Call 
 
Mayor Browning called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m.  Present were Mayor Browning, Vice-Mayor 
Jarriel, Councilmen Goltzené, and Rockett.  Councilman Ryan Liang was absent at this time.  Also 
present were Town Manager Mark Kutney, Town Planning Consultant Jim Fleischmann, Town 
Attorney Cirullo, and Town Clerk Janet K. Whipple. 

 
b. Pledge of Allegiance & Invocation – Mayor Browning 
 
c. Approval of Agenda 

 
Motion:  Councilman Rockett made a motion to approve the Agenda, as presented.  Vice-Mayor 
Jarriel seconded the motion.  Upon vote, the motion passed 4/0. 

 
 

2. CONSENT AGENDA   
 

a.  Invoice from Goren, Cherof, Doody & Ezrol, P.A.  
b. Medical PODS (Point of Dispensing) - Consideration of a Transmittal of Memorandum of 

Agreement between the Town of Loxahatchee Groves and the Florida Department of Health in 
Palm Beach County for Support Services for Emergency Dispensing of Strategic National 
Stockpile. 

15 of 143  04/01/2014  Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



TOWN COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES, TUESDAY, MARCH 4, 2014 
   Page 2 of 10  

 
 

 
Town Council Minutes 
03/04/2014 
  

Motion:  Councilman Rockett made a motion to approve the Consent Agenda.  Vice-Mayor 
Jarriel seconded the motion.  Upon vote, the motion passed 4/0. 

 
3.   PUBLIC COMMENT - None 
 
 
4.   PRESENTATIONS - None 

 
  

5.  COMMITTEE REPORTS  
 
Elise Ryan, 3508 A Road, and Financial Advisory and Audit Committee (FAAC) Member provided 
reports on the following: 
 

a. Approval of the January 2014 Financial Report. 
 

 Motion:  Councilman Rockett made a motion to approve the January 2014 Financial Report.  
Vice-Mayor Jarriel seconded the motion.  Upon vote, the motion passed 4/0. 

 
b. Consideration to retain the Town’s external auditors Nolen, Holt, Miner, P.A.  

 
Mrs. Ryan reported the FAAC voted 5/0 to support Staff’s recommendation to retain the Town’s 
external auditor Nolen Holt and Miner, P.A., for an additional three (3) years. In the packet provided to 
Council was Management’s letter recommending retention of the audit firm, a letter from the audit 
firm including a schedule of proposed fees, and a copy of the current contract with the audit firm.  The 
cost to retain (keep) Nolen Holt and Miner P.A. will be $16,700 per year for the next 5 years, which is 
the current contract rate.  The Town will actually go six (6) years without an increase of payment.   
 
Town Attorney Cirullo asked Council if they wanted Staff to bring back a renewal agreement with the 
Auditors, or go through a selection process.  According to the Florida Statutes, the Town can renew 
with the auditors. 
 
It was the consensus of the Council for Staff will bring a renewal agreement for approval of the 
current external auditors, Nolen, Holt, and Miner, P.A. to the next Town Council Meeting. 
 

c. Discussions relative to options for municipal financial systems software.  
 
Note for the Record:  Councilman Liang arrived at 7:10 p.m. 

 
Cost consideration and additional information will be brought back to Council as an entire package. 

 
d. FAAC Power Point Presentation requesting reconsideration on the use of Town reserves. 

 
Mrs. Ryan provided a PowerPoint – “The Road Ahead”. The Topics were: 

General and Transportation Fund Revenue by Category 

16 of 143  04/01/2014  Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



TOWN COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES, TUESDAY, MARCH 4, 2014 
   Page 3 of 10  

 
 

 
Town Council Minutes 
03/04/2014 
  

Trend Chart – Revenue for Prior 4 years 
Revenues by Category Fiscal Year 2010-2013 
General Fund Expenditures by Category – Fiscal Year 2010-2013 
Assessed Taxable Value and Millage Fiscal Year 2010-2013 
Estimated Fiscal Year 2014 Fund Balances vs Fund Balances with Applied Fiscal Policy & 
GAAP 
Challenges 
Opportunities 
Recommendations for 2014-15 Budget 
 

Bill Underwood, from Underwood Management Group, stated that if any property has not received a 
Certificate of Occupancy (CO) by January 1st, the CO will not be effective until 2016. 

 
Maintain Current Fiscal Policy for Reserves 
 

The FAAC recommends that Council reconsider the $1.8 mil Capital Budget, and is requesting a 
Workshop to review and revise capital budget. 
  
Council discussed capital expenditures, not putting a hold on any project at this time, commitment to 
the residents of Collecting Canal Road, Compton Road, Bryan Road, and Marcella Boulevard, fair 
assessment fees, and reserves and line of credit (which will need a referendum). 
 
Motion:  Vice-Mayor Jarriel made a motion to have a Workshop on March 18, 2014, at 6:00 p.m. 
followed by the Regular Town Council meeting at 7:00 p.m.  Councilman Liang seconded the 
motion.  Upon vote, the motion passed 3/2 with Councilman Goltzené and Mayor Browning 
casting dissenting votes. 
 
6.  RESOLUTIONS - None 
 
7.  ORDINANCES  
 
 ORDINANCES: PUBLIC HEARING 

 
   a. ORDINANCES NO. 2013-11: FIRST READING / PUBLIC HEARING: 

(Historical Legacy):   
AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE 
GROVES, FLORIDA, RELATING TO HISTORICAL LEGACY USES AND APPROVALS; 
AMENDING THE TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES UNIFIED LAND DEVELOPMENT 
CODE (ULDC), TO AMEND SECTION 75-035, ENTITLED “USES AS OF OCTOBER 1, 
2006” TO ADD THE TERM HISTORICAL LEGACY TO THE SECTION TITLE;  TO 
SPECIFY THE CATEGORY OF SPECIAL EXCEPTION NECESSARY FOR CERTAIN USES 
IN THE ZONING CATEGORY; TO REQUIRE THAT THE  PROPERTY ON WHICH THE 
USE IS LOCATED SHALL HAVE BEEN OWNED AND SUBJECT TO A HOMESTEAD 

17 of 143  04/01/2014  Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



TOWN COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES, TUESDAY, MARCH 4, 2014 
   Page 4 of 10  

 
 

 
Town Council Minutes 
03/04/2014 
  

EXEMPTION IN THE NAME OF THE OPERATOR; TO REQUIRE THAT THE USE DOES 
NOT PRESENT A THREAT TO PUBLIC HEALTH;  TO REQUIRE THAT THE USE HAS 
NO HISTORY OF CODE VIOLATIONS OR THE USE HAS BEEN BROUGHT INTO CODE 
COMPLIANCE; TO REQUIRE THAT THE OWNER-OPERATOR SUBMIT AN AFFIDAVIT 
STIPULATING TO COMPLIANCE WITH CERTAIN CONDITIONS;  TO REQUIRE 
REVIEW AND INSPECTION BY THE TOWN; PROVIDING THAT CERTAIN USES ARE 
NOT ELIGIBLE FOR APPROVAL UNDER THIS SECTION; PROVIDING FOR CONFLICT; 
PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; PROVIDING FOR CODIFICATION; AND, 
PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE.  (This will be a 2nd First Reading for lack of 
consistency in title advertisement.) 
 
Town Attorney Cirullo read title of Ordinance No. 2013-11. 
 
Jim Fleischmann, Town Planning Consultant, provided a staff report and explained why Ordinance No. 
2013-11 has come back again for first reading.  Mr. Fleischmann referencing that Section 75-035(C), 
page 96 of the Agenda Packet is the Council requested change.  Homestead Exemption should state in 
Loxahatchee Groves.  
 
Council discussed with Town Attorney Cirullo special exception, quasi-judicial proceedings, lack of 
special notice to neighbors surrounding the areas of concern, clarity of the ordinance, and the 
ordinance being placed on Consent Agenda for approval. 
 
Motion: Councilman Liang made a motion to accept Ordinance No. 2013-11 on its 2nd First 
Reading.  Councilman Goltzené seconded the motion.  Upon vote, the motion passed 5/0. 

 
 
  b. ORDINANCE NO. 2014-01 / SECOND READING / PUBLIC HEARING 

(Drysdale – Comprehensive Plan Amendment):    
 AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE 

GROVES, FLORIDA, ADOPTING AN AMENDMENT TO THE TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE 
GROVES ADOPTED COMPREHENSIVE PLAN, IN ACCORDANCE WITH CHAPTER 163, 
FLORIDA STATUTES, CONCERNING A SMALL-SCALE LAND USE PLAN AMENDMENT 
APPLICATION  PROPOSED BY NANCY C. DRYSDALE THE APPLICANT AND 
PROPERTY OWNER TO CHANGE THE DESIGNATION OF THE SUBJECT USE OF LAND 
FROM RURAL RESIDENTIAL 5 (1 DU PER 5 ACRES) IN THE TOWN’S ADOPTED PLAN, 
TO COMMERCIAL LOW (CL) FOR FUTURE DEVELOPMENT OF PROPERTY ON 6.55 
ACRES MORE OR LESS LOCATED AT THE NORTHWEST CORNER OF SOUTHERN 
BOULEVARD AND LOXAHATCHEE AVENUE,  LOXAHATCHEE GROVES, FLORIDA 
(AMENDMENT 2013-02), LEGALLY DESCRIBED AND AS DESIGNATED ON THE MAP 
ATTACHED AS EXHIBIT “A” TO THIS ORDINANCE; PROVIDING FOR AMENDMENT 
TO THE FUTURE LAND USE MAP OF THE COMPREHENSIVE PLAN TO REFLECT 

18 of 143  04/01/2014  Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



TOWN COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES, TUESDAY, MARCH 4, 2014 
   Page 5 of 10  

 
 

 
Town Council Minutes 
03/04/2014 
  

SUCH CHANGE; PROVIDING FOR CONFLICTS; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; 
AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
Town Attorney Cirullo noted that this was second reading, and a public hearing.  He proceeded to read 
the title of Ordinance No. 2014-01. 
 
Jim Fleischmann, Town Planning Consultant, explained the purpose of Ordinance No. 2014-01.  The 
Planning and Zoning Board had recommended approval, with six (6) conditions. (Page one-hundred 
(100) of the Agenda Packet) 
 
Council had deliberations on the conditions. 
 
Nancy Drysdale (Applicant), and her son Glen, came forward and agreed with all the conditions except 
number one (#1).  They have a developer, (whom they cannot disclose at this time); their concerns 
were with the ratio limiting the maximum number of square feet for a commercial space to 28,532 
square feet, on the commercial property. It was noted that Ms. Drysdale bought the property twenty-
five (25) years ago, and has lived in Loxahatchee Groves for thirty-five (35) years. 
 
Jim Fleischmann stated that is was the maximum the Comprehensive Plan allows at this time.  This 
could be an issue for the applicant.  Looking at the Southern Boulevard Plan, one of the 
recommendations was that the Town could raise the ratio along Southern Boulevard; however, the 
Drysdale property would still fall under the original Comprehensive Plan.  The applicants would have 
to come back through the Comprehensive Plan Amendment process just to make the change. It is still 
limited to point-one percent (.1%) of the maximum. 
 
Council discussed the ratio. 
 
Town Attorney Cirullo stated the Town can take this out as a condition, but the restrictions are still 
limited to point-one percent (.1%) of the FAR (Floor Area Ratio).   
 
Councilman Goltzene made a motion to adopt Ordinance No. 2014-01 as amended.  Vice-Mayor 
Jarriel seconded the motion, with comments that he hopes the Applicant understands even 
though the sentence is removed the point-one percent (.1%) ratio is still in effect. 
 
Upon further discussion by Council, Councilman Goltzené as willing to change his motion and 
remove the first sentence in Condition number one (1), that states the “development of the 
property shall be limited to a maximum of 28,532 square feet of commercial space”.  Vice-Mayor 
Jarriel’s second will stand.  
 
There were three (3) additional comments concerning the FDOT (Florida Department of 
Transportation) ponds. 
 
Upon vote the motion passed 5/0. 
 
Mayor Browning called for a five minute break, 8:55 – 9:00 p.m. 

19 of 143  04/01/2014  Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



TOWN COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES, TUESDAY, MARCH 4, 2014 
   Page 6 of 10  

 
 

 
Town Council Minutes 
03/04/2014 
  

 
ORDINANCES – QUASI-JUDICIAL 
  

c. ORDINANCE NO. 2014-02 / SECOND READING/QUASI JUDICIAL 
HEARING: (Drysdale – Zoning Change):   
AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE 
GROVES, FLORIDA, PROVIDING FOR THE REZONING OF LAND CONSISTING OF 6.55 
ACRES, MORE OR LESS, LOCATED AT THE NORTHWEST CORNER OF SOUTHERN 
BOULEVARD AND LOXAHATCHEE AVENUE, LOXAHATCHEE GROVES, FLORIDA 
(REZ 2013-03), LEGALLY DESCRIBED AND AS DESIGNATED ON THE MAP ATTACHED 
AS EXHIBIT “A” TO THIS ORDINANCE, FROM TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES 
ZONING DESIGNATION AGRICULTURAL RESIDENTIAL (AR) TO THE TOWN’S 
ZONING DESIGNATION COMMERCIAL LOW (CL) IN ACCORDANCE WITH A SMALL-
SCALE LAND USE PLAN AMENDMENT APPLICATION BY NANCY C. DRYSDALE, THE 
APPLICANT AND PROPERTY OWNER THROUGH ORDINANCE 2014-01; PROVIDING 
FOR THE APPROPRIATE REVISIONS OF THE ZONING DISTRICT MAP; PROVIDING 
FOR SEVERABILITY; PROVIDING FOR CONFLICTS; AND PROVIDING FOR AN 
EFFECTIVE DATE. 
 
Town Attorney Cirullo read the title of Ordinance No. 2014-02 and stated anyone who wished to speak 
on this ordinance must be sworn in. 
 
Jim Fleischmann, Town Planning Consultant, provided staff recommendations. 
 
Town Attorney Cirullo asked the Applicants if they wished to speak, and they did not. 
 
Mayor Browning opened the Quasi-Judicial Public Hearing at 9:01 p.m.  There being no one to speak, 
Mayor Browning closed the Quasi-Judicial Public hearing at 9:02 p.m.  
 
Motion:  Councilman Goltzené made a motion to adopt Ordinance No. 2014-02.  Councilman 
Liang seconded the motion.  Upon vote, the motion passed 5/0. 

 
  8.  ADMINISTRATIVE UPDATE – Town Manager Kutney 

 
a. IGC (Intergovernmental Coordination Committee) 

 
Mr. Kutney stated that for the IGC Meeting on March 26, 2014, the time will be at 8:30 a.m., and 
Councilman Goltzené will stand in for Councilman Rockett as the Town’s representative, through 
May.  

 
b. Traffic Study Meeting 

 
c. Western Communities Council 

 
d. Update on Compton Road 

20 of 143  04/01/2014  Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



TOWN COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES, TUESDAY, MARCH 4, 2014 
   Page 7 of 10  

 
 

 
Town Council Minutes 
03/04/2014 
  

9.  OLD BUSINESS 
 

a. Draft ordinance for discussion of issues regulating Town moratorium on manure hauling. 
 

Town Manager Kutney reported that Town Attorney Cirullo provided a memo and a draft ordinance 
for Council to review concerning the moratorium on manure hauling.  As enforcement of the manure 
issues are critical, today (March 4, 2014) Mr. Kutney attended a 1:00 p.m. meeting at the Central Palm 
Beach County Chamber of Commerce with Lt. Combs, from the Palm Beach County Sheriff’s Office 
(PBSO); Town Attorney Cirullo via phone; Frank Schiola, Town Public Works Supervisor; Braeden 
Garrett, Town Planning Technician; and Russ Elgin, Town Code Enforcement Officer.  Lt. Combs 
brought along Steve Wilson, and Bryan Evert and Bart Arnold from the PBSO Environmental Unit. 
Mr. Kutney stated enforcement is extremely important; the code states from sunrise to sunset and many 
of the complaints are concerning haulers after sunset.  Town manager Kutney is willing to pull permits 
if the haulers are in violation, and noted some regulations that he feels might be a good idea.  

 
Town Attorney Cirullo explained that he had been in contact with the State Attorney’s Office in order 
to determine what it would take, or what rules the Office feels are lacking from the Town’s 
prospective, in order for them to prosecute a case, and what the Town would need to do.  It is an open 
and shut case if a property owner is not aware that the dumping is occurring on their property.  It is less 
of an open and shut case if the property owner allows the dumping and is not complying with the 
Town requirements/permitting, even though the Town Code states that is a violation of State Statutes.   
 
Council discussed sticking with the original plan of no dumping in the Town of Loxahatchee Groves, 
pulling permits if haulers violate moratorium, and Council responsibilities toward illegal dumping. 
 
Town Attorney Cirullo stated that if a permit had been granted under the current state of law, and there 
is no reason, the Town does not have the authority to revoke the permit at this time. 
 
Motion:  Councilman Goltzené made a motion to give Town Manager Kutney the authority to 
pull permits from unlawful haulers.  Councilman Liang seconded the motion. 
 
Council again discussed hauling issues, concerning motorcycle police officers to monitor hauling from 
outside the Town limits, pulling and refunding permit fees. 
 
Town Attorney Cirullo stated that the Council would have to determine that if a hauler was in violation 
of the Town ordinance; what is the repercussion for the owner of the property, and what is the 
repercussion for the hauler. 

 
Council recommended closing the door on all haulers coming into the Town, approve the ordinance 
before the Town commences with any regulations, and notify any landowners who are receiving the 
manure that they may be responsible for the cost of any pollution that is determined as an 
environmental hazard in the canals, even though this will be difficult to determine.  
 
Town Attorney Cirullo verified suggestions from Town Manager Kutney, which were:  Restricted 
hours from 9:00 a.m. to 4:00 p.m. Monday through Friday; logs needed for pickup and drop off (and 

21 of 143  04/01/2014  Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



TOWN COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES, TUESDAY, MARCH 4, 2014 
   Page 8 of 10  

 
 

 
Town Council Minutes 
03/04/2014 
  

completed logs returned to the Town Hall); permits that must include all properties and limit fifty (50) 
loads per year, and above that each load will cost $25.00 per load. 

  
Town Attorney Cirullo will bring the ordinance back for first reading on March 18, 2014.  

 
John Ryan, 3508 A Road, this is an enforcement nightmare, and reported on environmental protection 
agency this needs to be a misdemeanor not code enforcement. And if they are caught we can confiscate 
their truck(s).  We need to shut everyone out. This ordinance will not work. 
 
Town Attorney Cirullo stated the Town will call the haulers and receivers.  

 
Lt. Combs state that officers will not stop haulers until the State Attorney’s Office signs off and gives 
permission.  

 
Town Attorney noted that whatever he can do legally after talking with the State Attorney’s Office he 
will do. 

 
Ken Johnson, 15409 Collecting Canal Road, was glad to see that Council is collectively doing 
something about this problem. We have to stop this. 
 
No vote was taken on the motion. 
 

b. Update of Priorities List for Council Review 
 

Councilman Rockett asked Town Manager Kutney to separate items on a yearly basis, completely in 
their own category. 

 
Town Manager Kutney will provide a memo, revised list to Council. 

 
c. Florida Department of Agriculture and Consumer Services:  “Water Quality/Quantity – 

Best Management Practices for Florida Equine Operations” (2011 Edition) (Receive and 
File) 
 

The Best Management Practices were attached to the Agenda Packet. 
 

d. Discussion of Speed Humps, and Template from Simmons and White. 
 
Town Manager Kutney reported that Simmons and White, the Town’s Traffic Engineers, reviewed the 
speed humps on Sycamore Drive and on 44th Road, east of 140th Drive, and they are essentially the 
same type of speed humps. 
 
Council discussed the speed humps. 
 
Motion:  Councilman Rockett made a motion to accept the speed humps as presented. 
Councilman Liang seconded the motion.  Upon vote, the motion passed 5/0. 

22 of 143  04/01/2014  Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



TOWN COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES, TUESDAY, MARCH 4, 2014 
   Page 9 of 10  

 
 

 
Town Council Minutes 
03/04/2014 
  

10. NEW BUSINESS 
 

a. Town-District Funding ILA (Interlocal Agreement) for District Road/Canal Maintenance – 
Fiscal Year 2013-2014 

 
Town Manager Kutney provided background, and stated that this was the amended Interlocal 
Agreement as it relates to the $150,000 Council set aside for road/canal maintenance.  The 
Loxahatchee Groves Water Control District (LGWCD) approved this Interlocal Agreement during 
their February 10, 2014 meeting.   
 
Councilman Goltzené did not feel that it was appropriate to make this decision tonight based on the 
Financial Report.  This cost would impact other paving projects.  
 
Town Manager Kutney stated this was for the 2013/2014 Fiscal Year.  The allocation was approved 
during the budget process. 
 
Vice-Mayor Jarriel stated the funds would only be spent as the work is done. 
 
Council discussed the agreement and its purpose. 
  
Motion:  Councilman Rockett made a motion to accept the Interlocal Agreement with the 
Loxahatchee Groves Water Control District (LGWCD).  Vice-Mayor Jarriel seconded the 
motion.  Upon vote, the motion passed 5/0. 
 
11.  CLOSING COMMENTS 
 

a. Public - None 
 
b. Town Attorney   

 
• Town of Loxahatchee Groves (“Town”) adv. Todd McLendon, Palm Beach 

County Circuit Court Case No. 502013CA011543XXXXMB (AY) Petition for 
Writ of Mandamus. 

 
Town Attorney Cirullo reported on Case No. 502013CA011543XXXXXMB(AY) and asked Council 
to confirm his authority to resolve the Petition for Writ of Mandamus concerning Todd McLendon.  
 
Motion:  Councilman Rockett made a motion give Town Attorney Cirullo permission to resolve 
the petition.  Councilman Liang seconded the motion.  Upon vote, the motion passed 5/0. 

 
Town Attorney Cirullo stated two (2) bills were filed for the roadways, yesterday March 3, 2014; 
House Bill 1335 for District roads and House Bill 1337 for the canal easements. 

 
Town Attorney Cirullo, concerning a discussion with Councilman Goltzené regarding gun ranges and 
regulating guns, suggested that Council review the Town’s ULDC (Unified Land Development Code).  

23 of 143  04/01/2014  Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



TOWN COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES, TUESDAY, MARCH 4, 2014 
   Page 10 of 10  

 
 

 
Town Council Minutes 
03/04/2014 
  

Councilman Goltzené requested Staff bring information regarding gun ranges and guns, back to 
Council at the next meeting.  

 
Town Attorney Cirullo stated that he would need a Motion to Direct in order to go through the process.   

 
Councilman Goltzene made a Motion to Direct Town Attorney Cirullo to proceed with the 
process for gun regulations and gun ranges.  Vice-Mayor Jarriel seconded the motion.  Upon 
vote, the motion passed 5/0. 

 
c. Town Council Members 

 
Councilman Rockett thanked everyone for coming. 

 
Councilman Liang thanked everyone for coming, and requested Staff draw up a letter in support of 
Palm Beach State College. Send the letters out to the Governor and interested parties, and bring the 
information back at the next meeting. 

 
Vice-Mayor Jarriel thanked everyone for coming and for them to be careful going home. 

 
Councilman Goltzené thanked everyone for coming and would see them next time. 
 
Mayor Browning also thanked everyone for coming. He received call from Julie at the Farmer’s 
Daughter Garden Center about the F Road access. He noted on the site plan for the Medical Center on 
Southern Boulevard, F Road around the business has been blocked off.  Vehicles now have to go 
around, and have no access from F Road.  Business is suffering. 

 
Town Manager Kutney will look into the site plan approval. 
 
12.  ADJOURNMENT 
 
There being no further business before the Town Council, Mayor Browning adjourned the meeting at 
10:20 p.m. 
 
 
 
____________________________    __________________________ 
Janet K. Whipple, Town Clerk    David Browning, Mayor 

 
(SEAL) 
 
 
 

These minutes were approved at the April 1, 2014, Town Council Meeting. 
 

 

24 of 143  04/01/2014  Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

 

 

 

 Item 2.c. 

Consent Agenda 

1st Amendment 

Interoperable Radio Communications Agreement 

 

 
 

25 of 143  04/01/2014  Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES 

OFFICE OF THE TOWN MANAGER 

AGENDA REPORT 

 
TO:  Mayor and Town Council 
 
FROM: Braeden Garrett, Town Planning Technician   
 
THROUGH: Mark A. Kutney, Town Manager, AICP, ICMA-CM  
 
DATE:            March 26, 2014 
 
SUBJECT:      Amendment #0001 to Agreement R2009-1172 – Interoperable Radio 

Communications 
   
I.  BACKGROUND/HISTORY 
 
On July 21, 2009 the Town of Loxahatchee Groves entered into an agreement with Palm Beach 
County that permitted the Town to access the Common Talk Groups established on the County's 
800 MHz radio system.  The terms of the agreement are standard and have been offered to all 
municipalities and local branches of state and federal agencies with 800 MHz trunked radio 
capabilities.   
 
II. DISCUSSION 
 
Terry Hearn, Facilities Development & Operations in Palm Beach County, is requesting the 
execution of three copies of Amendment #0001 (all three originals will be sent back to the 
county for Board of County Commissioner consideration and approval – one original will be 
mailed back to the Town once the document has been executed by all parties).    
 
III. FISCAL IMPACT 
 

• N/A 
 
IV. ATTACHMENTS 
 

• One (1) copy of Amendment #0001 
• One (1) copy of R2009-1172 

 
V. REQUESTED ACTION 
 
Motion to approve Amendment #0001 and request for Mayor to execute the same. 

26 of 143  04/01/2014  Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



27 of 143  04/01/2014  Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



28 of 143  04/01/2014  Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



29 of 143  04/01/2014  Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



30 of 143  04/01/2014  Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



31 of 143  04/01/2014  Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



32 of 143  04/01/2014  Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



33 of 143  04/01/2014  Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



34 of 143  04/01/2014  Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



35 of 143  04/01/2014  Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



36 of 143  04/01/2014  Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



37 of 143  04/01/2014  Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



38 of 143  04/01/2014  Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



39 of 143  04/01/2014  Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



40 of 143  04/01/2014  Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



41 of 143  04/01/2014  Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



42 of 143  04/01/2014  Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



43 of 143  04/01/2014  Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



44 of 143  04/01/2014  Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



45 of 143  04/01/2014  Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



46 of 143  04/01/2014  Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



47 of 143  04/01/2014  Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

 

 

 

 Item 4. 

PRESENTATIONS 

Shelly Townsend - Equine Eco Green 

 
 

48 of 143  04/01/2014  Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



49 of 143  04/01/2014  Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



50 of 143  04/01/2014  Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



51 of 143  04/01/2014  Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



52 of 143  04/01/2014  Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



53 of 143  04/01/2014  Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



54 of 143  04/01/2014  Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



55 of 143  04/01/2014  Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



56 of 143  04/01/2014  Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



57 of 143  04/01/2014  Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



58 of 143  04/01/2014  Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



59 of 143  04/01/2014  Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



60 of 143  04/01/2014  Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



61 of 143  04/01/2014  Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



62 of 143  04/01/2014  Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

 

 

 

 Item 5.a. 

COMMITTEE REPORTS 

FAAC – Financials for February 2014 

 
 

63 of 143  04/01/2014  Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



64 of 143  04/01/2014  Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



65 of 143  04/01/2014  Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



66 of 143  04/01/2014  Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



67 of 143  04/01/2014  Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



68 of 143  04/01/2014  Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



69 of 143  04/01/2014  Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



70 of 143  04/01/2014  Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

 

 

 

 Item 5.b. 

COMMITTEE REPORTS 

RETGAC (tentative) 

 

 
 

71 of 143  04/01/2014  Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

 

 

 

 Item 6. 

RESOLUTIONS 

None 

 
 

72 of 143  04/01/2014  Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

 

 

 

 Item 7. 

ORDINANCES 

Ordinance No’s. 2014-03 (Waste Haulers) 

(2nd – 1st Reading) 

 

 
 

73 of 143  04/01/2014  Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 

Ordinance No. 2014-03 {100001.DOC } Page 1 of 9 

TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 2014-03 
 
 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN 
OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES, FLORIDA, RELATING TO 
HAULING OF LIVESTOCK WASTE WITHIN THE TOWN;  
PROVIDING FOR DEFINITIONS; PROVIDING FOR PERMITS 
AND PERMIT FEES; PROVIDING FOR THE DISPOSAL OF 
LIVESTOCK WASTE ONLY AT APPROVED DISPOSAL SITES 
WITHIN THE TOWN; PROVIDING FOR PERMITTED HOURS 
OF HAULING LIVESTOCK WASTE WITHIN THE TOWN;  
PROVIDING FOR REQUIRED RECORDS AND AUDITING OF 
SUCH RECORDS BY THE TOWN; PROVIDING FOR 
CHANGES TO LIVESTOCK WASTE REGULATIONS; 
PROVIDING FOR REVOCATION OF PERMITS AND 
ENFORCEMENT; PROVIDING FOR CONFLICTS; PROVIDING 
FOR SEVERABILITY; PROVIDING FOR CODIFICATION; 
AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
 WHEREAS, on April 6, 2010, the Town Council of the Town of Loxahatchee Groves 

adopted Ordinance 2010-003, to provide requirements for permits by landowners and transporters 

of manure and horse bedding (livestock waste) in the Town; and,  

 WHEREAS, on April 3, 2012, the Town Council adopted Ordinance 2012-03, which 

amended and restated Ordinance 2010-03, to provide for properties eligible to receive manure and 

horse bedding materials (livestock waste), amend permit requirements and provide regulations on 

how such materials are used on eligible properties; and,  

 WHEREAS, the Town Council has heard concerns from Town Management and the public 

relating to the current permitting process and continued abuses by haulers and property owners for 

dumping manure and horse droppings (livestock waste) on properties within the Town; and,  

 WHEREAS, the Town Council continues to be concerned with water quality within the 

drainage canals in the Town, and has heard from residents with scientific and academic 

74 of 143  04/01/2014  Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 

Ordinance No. 2014-03 {100001.DOC } Page 2 of 9 

backgrounds that raised phosphorous levels are possible from continued abuse of manure and horse 

bedding (livestock waste) by haulers and property owners within the Town; and,  

 WHEREAS, improper hauling and disposal of Livestock Waste is a nuisance, attracting 

flies and emanating odors to nearby properties; and 

 WHEREAS, the Town Council believes that increased regulation of livestock waste haulers 

is necessary to prevent illegal dumping and pollution, and avoid the creation of nuisances within the 

Town; and,   

 WHEREAS, the provisions of this Ordinance shall replace and supersede the requirements 

for livestock waste haulers in Ordinance 2012-03.   

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE 

TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES, FLORIDA, THAT: 

 Section 1. The foregoing “Whereas” clauses are hereby ratified and confirmed as 

being true and correct and are hereby made a specific part of this Ordinance upon adoption 

hereof.      

 Section 2. Definitions.  The following definitions shall apply to this Ordinance. 

(a) Approved disposal site: A parcel of real property in which a Town, county or state 

registration or permit has been issued for the disposal and/or processing of livestock 

waste, as amended from time to time, and/or a plot of land that is conducting bona fide 

agricultural activities in accordance with F.S. § 193.461. 

(b) Bona fide agricultural purposes:  means farming, pasture, grove, or forestry operations, 

including horticulture, floriculture, viticulture, dairy, livestock, poultry, bee and 

aquaculture, consistent with Section 823.14, Florida Statutes (Right to Farm) and Section 

570.02, Florida Statutes (Agriculture).                   

75 of 143  04/01/2014  Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 

Ordinance No. 2014-03 {100001.DOC } Page 3 of 9 

(c) Commercial livestock waste hauler: Person(s), firm(s), corporation(s), or other legal 

entity(ies) permitted by the Town to provide livestock waste removal or delivery services 

for a fee, or in exchange for payment, within the Town in accordance with terms and 

conditions established by this ordinance. 

(d) Composting: The process by which biological decomposition of organic solid waste is 

carried out under controlled aerobic conditions, and which stabilizes the organic fraction 

into a material which can easily and safely be stored, handled, and used in an 

environmentally acceptable manner for a period of 30 to 90 days.  

(e) Hauler:  when used herein, collectively Commercial Livestock Waste Hauler and 

Livestock Waste Self-Haulers 

(f) Livestock: All animals of the equine, bovine, or swine class.  

(g) Livestock facility: Property under single ownership or control where livestock is raised 

and or boarded.  

(h) Livestock waste: Wastes composed of excreta of animals and residual materials that have 

been used for bedding, sanitary, or feeding purposes for such animals. For purposes of 

this ordinance, livestock waste that has been properly composted shall not be considered 

livestock waste.  

(i) Livestock waste self-hauler: Property owner or authorized representative registered with 

the Town to provide livestock waste removal services from their own property using their 

own equipment and vehicles, to an Approved Disposal Site in accordance with the terms 

and conditions established by this ordinance.  

76 of 143  04/01/2014  Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 

Ordinance No. 2014-03 {100001.DOC } Page 4 of 9 

(j) Nuisance:  the unreasonable, unwarranted and/or unlawful activity and/or use of property, 

which causes inconvenience or damage to others, either to individuals and/or to the 

general public. 

(k) Livestock waste storage area: An area constructed of impermeable material such as 

concrete or asphalt; with an impermeable cover; or a mechanical storage container that 

can be sealed, lifted, and transported. 

(l) Load: approximately twenty (20) to twenty-five (25) cubic yards of Livestock Waste.  

 Section 3. All Commercial Livestock Waste Haulers and Livestock Waste Self-

Haulers must comply with the requirements of this ordinance.   

 Section 4. Permitting Requirements. All Commercial Livestock Waste Haulers 

and Livestock Waste Self-Haulers transporting Livestock Waste within the Town must obtain a 

permit from the Town prior to engaging in any hauling of Livestock Waste.   

(a) In obtaining the permit, the Commercial Livestock Waste Haulers and Livestock 

Waste Self-Hauler will: 

1. Identify every property within the Town from which it will haul Livestock Waste, 

and every Approved Disposal Site (whether located within the Town or not) to 

which it will deliver Livestock Waste; 

2. Provide copies of all licenses and registrations for vehicles used for hauling 

Livestock Waste. 

3. Acknowledge on a form provided by the Town that (1) loads to be deposited 

within the Town originate from a Livestock Facility within the Town, or shows by 

separate affidavit its load originated from outside the State of Florida; (2) upon 

receipt of a request from a property owner within the Town for Livestock Waste, 

77 of 143  04/01/2014  Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 

Ordinance No. 2014-03 {100001.DOC } Page 5 of 9 

it will confirm prior to engaging in hauling that the Livestock Waste will be 

deposited within a Livestock waste storage area or used solely for bona fide 

agricultural purposes, and that the property owner has obtained the necessary 

permit from the Town; and (4) that it has read and reviewed this ordinance and 

agrees to its requirements and provisions, and will adhere to such in providing its 

hauling services. 

4. Pay the required fees for the permit. 

(b) An annual permit shall be valid from October 1 to September 30, and shall expire 

each September 30 regardless of the date it is issued.  Haulers are responsible for the timely 

renewal of the annual permits.     

(c) The annual permit fee for a Commercial Hauler shall be $500.00.  The annual 

permit fee for Livestock Waste Self-Haulers shall be $100.00.  An annual permit shall permit the 

Hauler to transport up to twenty (20) loads.  The permit fee shall be $2000.00 if a Hauler 

transports Livestock Waste prior to obtaining a permit from the Town.       

(d) A Commercial Livestock Waste Hauler may transport in excess of twenty (20) 

loads, for a maximum of thirty (30) additional loads, at an additional fee of $40.00 per load, paid 

in advance to the Town.  Should the Commercial Livestock Waste Hauler fail to pay such fee in 

advance, the fee shall be _____ per load. 

(e) A Livestock Waste Self-Hauler may transport thirty (30) additional loads, at an 

additional fee of _____ per load, paid in advance to the Town.  Should the Livestock Waste Self-

Hauler fail to pay such fee in advance, the fee shall be _____ per load. 

(f) The fees set forth in this ordinance may be amended by the Town Council by 

resolution. 

78 of 143  04/01/2014  Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 

Ordinance No. 2014-03 {100001.DOC } Page 6 of 9 

(g) No permit shall be issued to a Hauler who has not remedied previous violations of 

this Ordinance.  

 Section 5. Origin of Livestock Waste.  All Livestock Waste deposited at Approved 

disposal sites in the Town must originate from within the Town, or be shown by affidavit to have 

originated from outside the State of Florida. 

 Section 6. Approved disposal sites. Haulers may deposit Livestock Waste only 

at Approved Disposal Sites for the purpose of composting in an approved composting area, or for 

bona fide agricultural purposes.     

 Section 7. Authorized Times for Hauling within the Town.  Hauling of Livestock 

Waste within the Town by any Hauler shall be permitted only between the hours of 9:00 a.m. 

through 4:00 p.m., Monday through Friday, except holidays as listed on the Town website. 

Hauling of Livestock Waste is prohibited at all other times.   

 Section 8. Required Records.      Hauling records shall be provided by Haulers to 

the Town Manager each month, no later than the fifth (5th) business day of the month following 

the month for which the report is filed.  Hauling records shall identify the waste source, quantity 

in cubic yards, and the waste disposal site with quantity deposited in cubic yards within an 

approved site. Hauling records shall include signed load tickets or affidavits certifying the loads 

from both the source and disposal site owners. Failure to timely provide monthly hauling records 

shall result in the revocation of the permit. The Town reserves the right to audit the hauling 

record and load tickets from the generating properties and disposal sites which have been 

approved as a disposal site as defined herein.  The failure to cooperate with such audit shall 

result in the revocation of a permit.    

79 of 143  04/01/2014  Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 

Ordinance No. 2014-03 {100001.DOC } Page 7 of 9 

 Section 9. Changes to Regulations.  The Town Council reserves the right to amend 

this Ordinance at any time, and any such amendments will apply to both future permits, and 

active permits unless specifically exempted by the Town Council.    

 Section 10. Revocation of Permits.  A Hauler that violates any of the provisions of 

this ordinance may have its permit revoked by the Town Manager. Should a person violate this 

ordinance on more than one (1) occasion during a calendar year, that person shall not be granted 

a permit from the Town for a period of one (1) calendar year from the date of the last violation.   

 Section 11. Nuisance.  A violation of this ordinance is deemed by the Town Council 

to be a public nuisance. 

 Section 12. Violation of State Laws.  The Town Council specifically finds that a 

violation of this ordinance presents a public nuisance for purposes of enforcement of Section 

403.413, Florida Statutes, and law enforcement officers charged with the enforcement of state 

and local laws within the Town shall strictly enforce Section 403.413, Florida Statutes. Upon the 

issuance of a violation notice under Section 403.413, Florida Statutes, or this ordinance, any 

permits issued by the Town to the Hauler shall be suspended and the Hauler shall cease all 

Livestock Waste hauling until such time as a hearing is conducted or the fines paid.    

 Section 13. Enforcement.  This ordinance shall be enforced as follows: 

(a) Law enforcement officers are authorized to enforce this ordinance.  In addition to 

penalties resulting from a violation of Section 403.413, Florida Statutes, the fines for violations 

of this ordinance shall be: 

First Offense Second Offense Third Offense All Additional 
Offenses 

$100 $250 $400 $500 

 

80 of 143  04/01/2014  Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 

Ordinance No. 2014-03 {100001.DOC } Page 8 of 9 

(b) The Town may also file charges for any offense in a court with jurisdiction, in 

which case the penalty shall be a fine of $500, imprisonment not to exceed sixty (60) days, or 

both, for each violation of this ordinance.  The Town shall recover its costs of prosecution, 

including attorney’s fees, filing fees, and personnel costs for law enforcement and Town 

employees. 

(c) To the extent authorized by law, the Town Administration is authorized to use the 

Town’s Code Enforcement process to enforce violations of this ordinance where a law 

enforcement officer has not otherwise issued violations of Section 403.413, Florida Statutes, or 

of this ordinance.  In such instances, the fine shall be the maximum permitted by law.   

(d) Each day a violation remains, and each haul for which there is no permit, 

constitutes a separate violation of this ordinance.   

 Section 14.  Effect on Ordinance 2012-03.  The provisions herein as to regulations 

for Haulers (referred to in Ordinance 2012-03 as transporters) of Livestock Waste, referred to in 

Ordinance 2012-03 as “manure and horse bedding,” supersedes and replaces regulations as to 

Haulers in Ordinance 2012-03. Regulations relating to property owners and the use of Livestock 

Waste on Property within the Town shall remain in effect except to the extent in conflict with 

this Ordinance.   

 Section 15. Repeal of Laws in Conflict.  All Ordinances or part of Ordinances in 

conflict herewith are in the same are hereby repealed to the extent of such conflict. 

 Section 16. Severability. If any section, paragraph, sentence, clause, phrase, or word 

of this Ordinance is for any reason held by the Court to be unconstitutional, inoperative, or void, 

such holding shall not affect the remainder of this Ordinance. 

81 of 143  04/01/2014  Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 

Ordinance No. 2014-03 {100001.DOC } Page 9 of 9 

 Section 17. Codification.  It is the intention of the Town Council of the Town of 

Loxahatchee Groves that the provisions of this Ordinance shall become and be made a part of the 

Code of Ordinances of the Town of Loxahatchee Groves, Florida, and that the Sections of this 

ordinance may be re-numbered, re-lettered, and the word "Ordinance" may be changed to 

"Section", "Article" or such other word or phrase in order to accomplish such intention. 

 Section 18. Effective Date.  This Ordinance shall become effective immediately upon 

its passage and adoption.  

 PASSED AND ADOPTED BY THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF 
LOXAHATCHEE GROVES, FLORIDA, ON FIRST READING, THIS 18th DAY OF 
MARCH, 2014. 
 
 PASSED AND ADOPTED BY THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN 
LOXAHATCHEE GROVES, ON SECOND READING AND PUBLIC HEARING, THIS 
_____ DAY OF ____________________, 2014.       
              

 
TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE  
GROVES, FLORIDA  

 
ATTEST:      ____________________________________ 
       Mayor David Browning  
        
_________________________________  ____________________________________ 
Janet K. Whipple, Town Clerk   Vice-Mayor Ron Jarriel   
    
       ____________________________________ 
       Council Member Tom Goltzené 
APPROVED AS TO LEGAL FORM:   
       ____________________________________
       Council Member Ryan Liang 
_________________________________   
Office of the Town Attorney    ____________________________________ 
       Council Member Jim Rockett 

82 of 143  04/01/2014  Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

 

 

 

 Item 8.a.b. 

ADMINISTRATIVE UPDATE 

Gas Tax Map Report 
IGC 

(No Backup) 
 

83 of 143  04/01/2014  Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

 

 

 

 Item 9.a.  

OLD BUSINESS 

Procurement of Construction Services 

84 of 143  04/01/2014  Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



  TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES 

OFFICE OF THE TOWN MANAGER 

AGENDA REPORT 

 
 
TO:                  Mayor and Town Council 
 
FROM:           Mark A. Kutney, Town Manager, AICP, ICMA-CM  
 
DATE:            March 26, 2014 
 
SUBJECT:     Construction Improvements for Compton, Bryan and Marcella Roadways 
 
 
I.  BACKGROUND/HISTORY 
 
The Town’s Engineering Firm, Keshavarz & Associates (K&A) has completed the construction 
plans for the referenced roadways above. Previously, Town Council directed Town Management 
to procure the improvements by securing the services of North Florida Emulsions, INC. (NFE) 
through a piggyback of NFE’s contract with Volusia County. On March 24, 2014 The Town 
Engineer, Town Attorney and Town Manager conducted a conference call to discuss the issues 
with the procurement. Due to the construction plans necessitating draining installations, grading 
improvements and other items, the Town Attorney and Town Manager were concerned regarding 
whether or not the piggyback procurement was still the appropriate method to procure this 
project. K&A was asked to review the Volusia Contract and report if the contract could be be 
procured as a piggyback service (see attached email report from Allen Green III of K&A). 
Maziar Keshavarz will be at the Meeting  to review the construction plans with Town Council.  
 
 
II. DISCUSSION 
 
Based upon the above, The Town Attorney, Town Manager and Town Engineer have discussed 
possible alternatives and will discuss the same with Town Council. If the Town opted to procure 
the work through an Invitation to Bid (ITB) the following schedule could be realized: 1) K&A 
would prepare bid documents to be completed for review by the FAAC on April 28, 2014; 2) Bid 
would be advertised and solicitation requested which would take in most of May; 3) Bids would 
be reviewed and Town Council would award the bid during June/July; and 4)  work on the three 
roadways could be started in July and the work would be completed in two/three months. This 
option and others can be discussed at the meeting. 
 

85 of 143  04/01/2014  Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 
 
III. FISCAL IMPACT 

K&A is in the process of preparing estimates of the construction cost and costs to prepare the bid 
documents and serve as advisor/inspectors on the work.  

 

IV. ATTACHMENTS 

March 25, 2014 email from Allen Green III to Mark Kutney 

 
V. REQUESTED ACTION 
 
Consideration by Town Council to instruct Town Management Staff to move forward with an 
ITB for the three roadways  
 
 

86 of 143  04/01/2014  Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



87 of 143  04/01/2014  Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

 

 

 

 Item 9.b. 

OLD BUSINESS 

Speed Humps 

(no backup) 

88 of 143  04/01/2014  Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

 

 

 

 Item 10.a. 

NEW BUSINESS 

Miscellaneous Budget Issues 

89 of 143  04/01/2014  Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



   TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES 

OFFICE OF THE TOWN MANAGER 

AGENDA REPORT 

 
 
TO:                  Mayor and Town Council 
 
FROM:           Mark A. Kutney, Town Manager, AICP, ICMA-CM  
 
DATE:            March 13, 2014 
 
SUBJECT:     Miscellaneous Budget Issues 
 
 
 
I.  BACKGROUND/HISTORY 
 
Town Management Staff is requesting Town Council direction and action related to three 
miscellaneous budget matters that have not been reconciled. The first matter deals with a 
$5,000.00 expenditure that Town Council voted to allocate as part of the Town’s contribution for 
a lobbyist related to the State Road 7 extension. This project is being handled as a collaborative 
effort by the Western Communities Council and was approved by Town Council on November 
5, 2013. 
 
The second issue relates to the installation of the culverts at the west end of Compton Road 
which was not budgeted as a project but approved by Town Council and discussed at the January 
14, 2014, and February 4, 2014, Meetings.  
 
The third issue has not been approved by Town Council and relates to several requests made by 
the RETGAC regarding the placement of equestrian signs (example of requested sign attached) 
at entrances throughout the Town. 
 
 
II. DISCUSSION 
 
Town Management Staff will recommend a line item for the lobbyist expenditure. The Compton 
Road Culvert matter will have engineering costs (design and inspection), construction, and 
material costs. When all the final costs are aggregated, these costs will be assigned to 
professional services, Town Roads maintenance and Town Roads OGEM Projects. At this point 
in time the costs for this project are $7,320.00   Relative to Equestrian signs, Town Management 

90 of 143  04/01/2014  Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Staff has obtained the cost for the attached sign in question and each sign would be $144.00. The 
Committee advised that seventeen signs are needed throughout the Town and this would equate 
to a total cost of $ 2,448.00. Town Management is seeking Town Council approval to purchase 
and erect the signs, and approval of the associated costs.   
 
 
III. FISCAL IMPACT 

Final cost determinations will be addressed in the near future. The expenditure for the Lobbyist 
is capped at $ 5000.00 and the estimated costs of the Compton Culvert project, and equestrian 
signs, are cited above. 

 

IV. ATTACHMENTS 

Photograph of Equestrian Area Slow for Horses 

 

V. REQUESTED ACTION 
 
Town Management recommends the funding of the $5,000.00 contribution of a lobbyist be 
addressed in line item 001-511-820-000 Special Events/Contributions. Since there was little 
election expense this year, Town Management recommends that the Culvert Project be covered 
by these funds and a budget amendment will be processed later this year. If Town Council opts 
to fund the equestrian signs, a recommendation will be offered at the meeting  
 

91 of 143  04/01/2014  Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



92 of 143  04/01/2014  Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

 

 

 

 Item 10.b. 

NEW BUSINESS 

Town Management RFP (Request for Proposal) 

93 of 143  04/01/2014  Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



94 of 143  04/01/2014  Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



95 of 143  04/01/2014  Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



96 of 143  04/01/2014  Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



97 of 143  04/01/2014  Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



98 of 143  04/01/2014  Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



99 of 143  04/01/2014  Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



100 of 143  04/01/2014  Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



101 of 143  04/01/2014  Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



102 of 143  04/01/2014  Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



103 of 143  04/01/2014  Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



104 of 143  04/01/2014  Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



105 of 143  04/01/2014  Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



106 of 143  04/01/2014  Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



107 of 143  04/01/2014  Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



108 of 143  04/01/2014  Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



109 of 143  04/01/2014  Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



110 of 143  04/01/2014  Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



111 of 143  04/01/2014  Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



112 of 143  04/01/2014  Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



113 of 143  04/01/2014  Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



114 of 143  04/01/2014  Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



115 of 143  04/01/2014  Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



116 of 143  04/01/2014  Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



117 of 143  04/01/2014  Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



118 of 143  04/01/2014  Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



119 of 143  04/01/2014  Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



120 of 143  04/01/2014  Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



121 of 143  04/01/2014  Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



122 of 143  04/01/2014  Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



123 of 143  04/01/2014  Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



124 of 143  04/01/2014  Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



125 of 143  04/01/2014  Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



126 of 143  04/01/2014  Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



127 of 143  04/01/2014  Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



128 of 143  04/01/2014  Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



129 of 143  04/01/2014  Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



130 of 143  04/01/2014  Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



131 of 143  04/01/2014  Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



132 of 143  04/01/2014  Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



133 of 143  04/01/2014  Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



134 of 143  04/01/2014  Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



135 of 143  04/01/2014  Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



136 of 143  04/01/2014  Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



137 of 143  04/01/2014  Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



138 of 143  04/01/2014  Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



139 of 143  04/01/2014  Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



140 of 143  04/01/2014  Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



141 of 143  04/01/2014  Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



142 of 143  04/01/2014  Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



143 of 143  04/01/2014  Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


	AGENDA
	2.a. Attorney Invoice
	2.b. Minutes 03/04/2014
	2.c. Radio Agreement
	4.a. Presentations - EEG
	5.a. Financials 02/2014
	5.b RETGAC - Tentative no backup
	6. Resolutions - none
	7. Ordinance No 2014-03
	8.a.b. Administrative update no backup
	9.a. Construction Improvements
	9.b. Speed Humps no backup
	10.a. Miscellaneous Budget Issues
	10.b. Management RFP



